
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
December 5, 2013, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 7, 2013 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
  1. Notice received November 26, 2013 from LAFCO re Notice of Position 


Availability: Alternate Public Member 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Election of Officers (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Discussion/Action re Review of the 2014-19 Capital 


Improvement Program (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re District Emergency Preparedness, Response and Recovery 


Plan (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re District policy regarding lending (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E.   Discussion/Action re Acquisition of Professional Assistance with Cell Tower 


Negotiations (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 
5 min.) 


 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 
 


 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 


 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
November 7, 2013 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Richard Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
 Victoria Wikle 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Richard Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
GM Steve Mack announced that Closed Session Item VIII-B (Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Significant exposure to litigation) would be dropped from the Agenda.   
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the October 3, 2013 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any. (There were none.) 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 


 1







(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:32 p.m.) Discussion/Action re FY 2013-14 1st Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


 
B. (6:40 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District policy regarding lending.  The GM provided 


an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  This action was continued for further 
discussion at the December Board meeting.  


 
C. (6:53 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District Emergency Preparedness, Response and 


Recovery Plan.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  
No action was taken. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:21 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Flow at Hacienda Bridge 
5. Guerneville Rainfall 
6. 2014 CIP 
7. Mill Street Emergency Project 
8. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
9. In-House Construction Projects 
10. Monte Rio Triangle 
11. Flushing Program 
12. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(7:34 p.m.) 


 
(None.)  
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:35 p.m.) 
 
At 7:35 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 7:36 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 7:53 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District  


  Direction was given to the Agency negotiator. 
 


B. (This item was removed from the Agenda pursuant to Item II above.) 
 
 


 2







 3


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (7:58 p.m.) 
 
1. District lending practices 
2. Cell towers 
3. District emergency preparedness 
4. Capital Improvement Program 
5. Election of Officers 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:21 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(7:34 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:35 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.7

		 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack

		 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (7:58 p.m.)

		ADJOURN











SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 5, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  2014 ORGANIZATION MEETING / BOARD ELECTIONS   


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Elect Board officers for the coming year.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District policy requires the election of officers for the coming year at the 
December Board meeting unless there is a change in the Board due to the 
November election.  District policy states: "5000.50 Annual Organizational 
Meeting: The Board of Directors shall hold an annual organizational meeting 
at its regular meeting in December, except in years when new Directors are 
elected to the Board at the November regular election and seated after the 
regular December meeting.  In those years, the annual organization meeting 
will be held at the regular January meeting.  At this annual meeting the 
Board will select and appoint offers, as described in sections 4050.11 through 
4050.13, from among its members to serve during the coming calendar 
year."  Sections 4005.11 through 4050.13 describe the positions of President, 
Vice President, and Financial Coordinator.   
 
This year there were no changes due to the November election, thus our 
elections occur at the December meeting.   
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: December 5, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 5, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REVIEW OF 2014 - 2019 CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM    


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the 2014-2019 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP). 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has an aggressive CIP with a priority aim of reducing system water losses.  
The CIP has had substantial assistance from the Redevelopment program but that is no 
longer available to assist with future projects, so we will need to use reserves, funds 
developed through water rate revenues or find other funding assistance sources.    We 
have had a substantial number of projects every year since 2008.     
 
Last year we had a lot of activity related to the CIP – we investigated USDA funding 
rejecting it after careful consideration, and we revised the program so that the Hidden 
Valley Road and Guernewood Lane projects were moved up to 2014 and the Old Monte 
Rio Road project was moved back to 2015.  We refinanced the USDA general obligation 
bonds so that more funding will be available for future CIP projects.   
 
Staff recommends continuing with the CIP approved in January 2013 (see Table 1) 
which will deplete District reserves as shown in Table 2.     
 
Reviewing the approved CIP, the 2014 CIP is near completion and the 2015 CIP is in 
design with award of contract expected in June 2014.  In looking at the rest of the 
approved CIP, staff have no reasons to change the recommendations at this time.    
The total estimated cost of the 5 years of projects is approximately $4.4 million.  
The total wish list of projects is approximately $7.2 million, a gap of almost $2.8 
million.  As shown in Table 2, which is the multi-year projection of available funding 
for capital projects, the District nears the Policy Reserve levels (line 39) in the 4th 
year of this program (FY 2017) but recovers by skipping a year.   The planning 
document also has no CIP in FY 2021.    At the end of the planning period, funds are 
available for additional capital programs.   The CIP will be continually monitored, of 
course, and if more funding is available in the future the completion schedule can be 
accelerated.    
 
Of note is the possible re-emergence of the Du Brava Hotel as a potential 
development within the District.  District financial planning has assumed that the Du 







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 2  
December 5, 2013 


 


Brava Hotel will require the Upper Summit tank and that the hotel will assist the 
District in paying for this improvement (50%?).  It may be that this project is on 
track for construction in FY 2017, in which case the tank project could be combined 
with the Park Avenue and Cherry Street improvements.  The Upper Summit Tank 
project needs to be re-examined to see if the best location for the added storage is 
at the upper Summit site – it may be that the lower Summit tank site would be a 
better location – lower pumping costs for the same supply to the lower elevations.   







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 3  
December 5, 2013 


 


 


   Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed 2014-2019 CIP Projects by 
Year;  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
Cost per 
service Comments 


2014    


 


Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf 
of existing main and appurtenances on 
Hidden Valley Rd, 67 services. $656,000 $9,791  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks; 
need to figure out 
project 


 


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 
lf of existing main and appurtenances and 
abandon 200 lf of redundant 4 – inch main 
along Hwy 116, 20 services. $318,000 $15,900  


Has been pushed down 
from past priority lists; 
needed. 


  2014 Total $974,000    


2015       


 


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 
5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy 
Andy Booster and proceeding westerly, 50 
services. $936,000 $18,720  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks  


 2015 Total $936,000   


2016       


  


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace 
approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., 
Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $890,000 $13,284  


needed project; moved 
this up. 


  2016 Total $890,000    


2017       


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 
2900 lf of main line on Park Ave. and 
McLane, 37 services.  Loop two deadend 
lines. $688,000 $18,595  


pushed down, but 
needed 


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 
lf of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692  do with Park Ave. 


  2017 Total $814,000    


2018 No  Capital Project   


2019       


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated 
services along Woodland Dr in the main 
pressure zone.   $400,000 $14,815    







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 4  
December 5, 2013 


 


  
Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement $130,000 NA 


Investigation/analysis 
needed on replacing 
this 


  5th Year (2019?) Total $805,000    


        


  Priority List (5 Years) Total $4,419,000    


        


  Other Projects     


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace 
approximately 3,000 ft of existing mainline 
and 47 associated services along 
Highland Way, Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, 
Laurel Way and Morningside Drive. 
(requires completion of Schoeneman 
Tank) $744,300 $15,836    


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000   Do with Main Street 


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 
ft of mainline along Main St. $180,000    


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction 
of the existing hydro-pneumatic pump 
station. $490,000  


Do we wait on 
development for these 
tanks?  Does new 
development 
contribute? 


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon storage tank with a 30,000 
storage tank.   2005 cost estimate $190,000    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000    


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. 
(requires completion of Natoma Tank) $800,000 $17,021    


  Other Projects Total  $2,811,300    


        


  Total Projects Amount $7,230,300    
 







3% Sales Flat


FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 2.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Approved CIP, 20 yr 
refi, no pay off of remaining bonds


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE


3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 238,000 245,140 252,494 260,069 267,871 275,907 284,184 292,710 301,491 234,300        


5 Total Water Sales 1,930,203 1,988,109 2,047,752 2,109,185 2,172,460 2,237,634 2,304,763 2,373,906 2,445,123 2,518,477


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,168,203 2,233,249 2,300,247 2,369,254 2,440,332 2,513,542 2,588,948 2,666,616 2,746,615 2,752,777


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 106,274 108,810 109,628 110,454 111,289 112,132 112,983 113,843 114,711 115,589


8 Total Income 2,274,477 2,342,059 2,409,875 2,479,708 2,551,621 2,625,673 2,701,931 2,780,459 2,861,326 2,868,366


9 EXPENSES
10 OPERATING EXPENSES


11 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,095,000 1,082,877 1,092,558 1,116,915 1,201,095 1,228,279 1,256,231 1,284,992 1,314,573 1,345,016
12 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1%


13 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 524,670 529,571 534,520 539,520 544,569 550,533 556,571 562,682 568,868 575,129


14 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,619,670 1,612,448 1,627,079 1,656,434 1,745,664 1,778,813 1,812,802 1,847,674 1,883,441 1,920,145


15 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $654,807 $729,611 $782,796 $823,274 $805,957 $846,861 $889,129 $932,785 $977,886 $948,221


16 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 20,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000


17 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


18 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 238,000 245,140 252,494       260,069      267,871      275,907      284,184          292,710         301,491         234,300        


19 Tfers to CIRF 360,000 440,000         470,000       520,000      480,000      530,000      550,000          600,000         620,000         680,000        


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 638,000 725,140 762,494 820,069 787,871 845,907 874,184 932,710 961,491 954,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT -3,193 -529 -5,698 -1,795 -7,914 -4,047 -11,056 -4,925 -9,606 -11,079


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 356,807 439,471 464,302 518,205 472,086 525,953 538,944 595,075 610,394 668,921


25 Assessments 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000


26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 238,000       245,140       252,494     260,069    267,871    275,907    284,184        292,710       301,491       234,300      


27 Capital Interest 25,000         30,000         10,000       10,000      10,000      10,000      10,000          10,000         10,000         10,000        


28 CDC Grants 914,250       


29 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 220,000         610,000         560,000       450,000      410,000      320,000          450,000         260,000        


30 TOTAL REVENUE 2,531,057 2,101,611 2,063,796 2,015,274 1,936,957 1,588,861 1,930,129 2,124,785 1,698,886 1,950,221


31
32 Total Debt Payments 1,086,633      1,061,314      1,046,314    1,046,314   1,046,314   1,046,314   1,046,314       1,046,314       1,025,314      876,314        


33 CIP 2013 CIP 2014 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021 CIP 2022


34 Annual CIP 1,623,898 974,000 936,000 890,000 814,000 805,000 1,000,000       1,000,000     


35 In-House Construction Projects 27,541 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
36 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,738,072 2,075,314 2,022,314 1,976,314 1,900,314 1,086,314 1,891,314 2,086,314 1,065,314 1,916,314


37 SURPLUS/DEFICIT -207,015 26,297 41,482 38,960 36,643 502,547 38,815 38,471 633,572 33,907


38 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


39 Ending Funds ab District Policy 2,354,329    1,770,626    1,252,108  841,068      467,711      970,257      689,072          277,543         911,115         685,021        


40 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 310,174       430,297       457,482     518,960    480,643    542,547    563,815        628,471       673,572       813,907      


*  Starting values based on projected FY13 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


EXPENSES


 





		Meeting Date: December 5, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  December 5, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT EMERGENCY 
PREPAREDNESS, RESPONSE AND RECOVERY PLAN 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on followup on the 
District’s Emergency Preparedness, Response and Recovery Plan. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none      
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the November meeting staff gave a presentation on the District’s Emergency 
Preparedness, Response and Recovery Plan (Emergency Response Plan).  
This is the time of year that we review it in preparation for the rainy season 
(which isn’t much so far this year) and as an annual check on keeping the plan 
contents up to date.  At the meeting we said we would be attending the 
November 15 meeting on flood preparedness and the Board requested that we 
report on that meeting 
 
General Manager Steve Mack and Field Manager Kevin Gilman attended the 
meeting on behalf of the District.  The agenda included introductions, a National 
Weather Service (NWS) report, review of the updated Lower Russian River Flood 
Response Plan, and lessons learned from last year.  Most of the time was spent 
on the first two items.  The NWS report was that they didn’t have any leanings 
for the coming year – anything is possible and their models show near equal 
chances for below, near and above average rainfall.  No El Nino (wet) or La Nina 
(dry) – they call it La Nada (nothing or no help.  Based on the information 
available to the NWS, we have equal chances of below, near, or above normal 
precipitation this winter – so for it’s tending to the former.  
 
The biggest change in the Flood Response Plan appeared to me to be the addition 
of a seventh stage – major flood – to reflect expected actions if the flood stage is 
projected to go above 40 feet in Guerneville.  Re-entry rules were changed so 
that there will be no “early” re-entry for residents (vs non-residents).   
 
Of note to me as I looked at the plan for the first time was in the Stage 2: Flood 
Monitor Notification flow chart on page 19 there is no place for notification of 
local special Districts like us.  The Emergency Manager, Chris Helgren, said he 
would get back to me on this.  I don’t think it’s a major issue as we do get 
notices when they come out; just an oversight on the flow chart (or maybe there 







Emergency Response Plan 2  
December 5, 2013 
 


 


wasn’t room).  The plan does seem to focus on communication between the 
sheriff and fire departments.   
 
The power outage on November 22nd was a good test for our repaired generator 
– it ran all night and freed up the on call person to attend to other issues in the 
District.  One recognition of the experiences of the two power outages is that we 
should have more generators in the District inventory – this would allow less 
moving of generators between sites.      
 
   
    
 





		MEETING DATE:  December 5, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  December 5, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT LENDING PRACTICES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive an updated presentation from the 
General Manager re District lending practices. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none      
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
This item was discussed at the October and November Board meetings.  
At the November Board meeting the Board agreed to handle these 
situations on a case by case basis – they don’t occur frequently enough to 
have an established policy.  The Board also requested that the item be 
carried over to the December meeting so that Board members not at the 
November meeting could review and discuss the information presented at 
the November meeting.  That information is below: 
 
In the discussion that occurred with this item at the October Board 
meeting, District staff agreed to call around to neighboring districts to see 
what their practices were.   
 
All of the Districts contacted make a practice of paying the capacity charge 
in full up front, which is our practice as well.  However, when it comes to 
water bills, all contacted districts – and Sweetwater -- allow office staff the 
discretion to allow additional time to make water bill payments.  None of 
the Districts contacted had encountered a scenario mirroring the 
Chamber’s request, but each had their own scenarios which were handled 
on a case-by case basis: 
 


 Russian River Utilities has allowed water use on a parcel from an 
adjoining parcel in lieu of connecting a new water meter with a 
resulting capacity charge when said water use was deemed to be in 
the public interest.   


 
 The Forestville Water District was faced with backcharging certain 


sewer customers for additional billing and capacity charges based on 
a multiple unit investigation.  Their Board decided to allow impacted 







District Lending Practices  2  
December 5, 2013 
 


 


customers time to make payments, and charge interest.  In 
practice, however, implementing this decision has proven labor 
intensive as some customers decided to accelerate their repayment 
schedules – calculating interest versus principal can be a challenge. 


 
  The Forestville Water District received and granted a request from 


the Forestville Youth Park for reduced water rates in recognition of 
the public service it provides.    


 
 The Forestville Water District water enterprise fund has provided 


short term loans with interest to the sewer enterprise fund.  
 
From our short investigation, it appears that:  
 


1. From time to time other Districts are faced with unique situations 
requiring case-by-case handling. 


 
2. Other districts do provide special treatment (if that’s the correct 


term) to customers on a case-by-case basis when they think it is 
in the public interest. 


 
3. Other districts do charge interest for certain payment extensions, 


but that practice can bring up administrative complexities that 
may outweigh the interest revenue involved.   


 
Staff believes situations where capacity charge wouldn’t be paid upfront 
will continue to be very infrequent and the revenue involved is not 
substantial compared to the effort tracking interest.  However, if the Board 
wishes that interest be charged in future situations, we should talk to our 
auditor about the best way to calculate interest payments.   





		MEETING DATE:  December 5, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  December 5, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT ACQUISITION OF 
PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE WITH CELL TOWER NEGOTIATIONS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on acquiring 
professional assistance with the leasing of District property for cell and 
other communication tower locations. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none      
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has property at elevations and locations attractive to 
companies that provide communication services such as cell phones and 
radios.  We currently have two leases for towers on Mount Jackson and 
recently went through a proposed lease experience at the Highland 
Treatment Plant site.    Both of these leases terminate fairly soon and will 
need to be renegotiated.   
 
Staff do not have much experience in the communications business, other 
than the activities related to the current leases and the proposed leases 
for the Highland site.  We have been contacted recently by firms who 
specialize in this business – representing public agencies (and perhaps 
private parties as well) in dealing with the communications industry over 
leasing their property.  In discussions with one representative it is obvious 
there is much to know regarding this.  Some characteristics of the 
relationship appear to be: 
 


 No upfront costs – these firms make their money after the leases 
have been negotiated, perhaps in the form of a certain number of 
months of rent in the case of renegotiated leases. 


 Proactive leasing – these firms actively try to lease properties versus 
waiting to be approached by communications firms. 


 Proactively trying to add customers to existing leases – these firms 
may try to add communication customers to existing towers for a 
percentage of the added revenue.  
 







Cell Tower Professional Services 2  
December 5, 2013 
 


 


If we want to go in this direction how do we make the selection?  I have 
talked to one company but have been contacted by another and I’m 
certain there are several consulting services out there that can offer these 
services.  Putting out a request for qualifications is a common way to find 
interested consulting services and find which provide the services and fee 
structures with which a public agency is most comfortable.   A followup 
interview process can help with the selection as well.   
 
The District has managed cell tower leases for many years and that has 
provided a steady stream of revenue.  We have two leases terminating in 
the relatively near future and many parcels that may be useful for 
additional communication tower locations.  Professional services may help 
the District maximize the revenue from these ventures.  Alternatively, we 
can stay with the current approach, keep it simple, and still receive the 
revenue stream – our Mount Jackson location will always be desirable to 
someone.   





		MEETING DATE:  December 5, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 5, 2013  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in October was 20,729 units (47.6 AF, Monte 


Rio cycle) and production was 64.4 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production 
were lower (51.0 AF and 71.6 AF, respectively).  The annual average difference between 
sales and production decreased slightly compared to the prior month to 26.9%.    Figure 1 
shows the differences between the Guerneville and Monte Rio systems – much higher 
losses continue with the Guerneville system while the Monte Rio system seems to have 
reached the system losses goal we have been looking for.           


 
3. Leaks:  In October we had 10 total leaks and spent 46.25 man-hours on them.   Those are 


fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and more of both compared to 
October one year ago (9 leaks, 36.0 man-hours). There may be an increase compared to 
one year ago, but 10 leaks in a month is good for the District – we’d like to have that for a 
monthly average (for now, but when we achieve that, we’ll want to do better).  Figure 2 
shows service and main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.   


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall: This rainy season is starting eerily identical to 1977, the driest year 


on record, with zero rain in October and 2.64 inches in November at the Guerneville rain 
gage (at the time of writing this report).  We need to pick it up.      


 
5. 2014 CIP:   The contractor, Piazza Construction has nearly completed the Hidden Valley 


element –the variable speed pumps have been installed and we are waiting on power for 
bringing this part of the project online. The contractor has finished boring Guernewood 
Lane and is working (at the time of this report) on tieing the main into the Hwy 116 main 
at both ends.  We are a bit behind schedule but that was caused by the interruption by the 
Mill Street Emergency Project.      


 
6. Mill Street Emergency Project:  The Mill Street Emergency Project is completed.  Some 


paving will need to be done if the street exhibits any more damage from the event.  The 
repair of the parking lot is scheduled for the week of December 2.             


 
7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates were approved in November.  


The Direct Install Program numbers remain the same: the most current accounting is 17 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 5 
December 5, 2013 
 


customers have had 27 direct install toilet installations completed, 13 customers with 17 
toilets have been approved for installation and 21 customers with 37 toilets are on a wait 
list.                     


 
8. In-House Construction Projects:  There were two in-house project reported for 


November.  Staff replaced 60 feet of 2-inch galvanized main with 2” HDPE on a bridge on 
Starrett Hill Road (9 hours) and installed a 2” riser on main valve and replaced a valve for 
a 2” line on Monte Vista Terrace (7.5 hours).     


 
9. Monte Rio Triangle:  The agreement with the Torrs and the Monte Rio Chamber has been 


shared with them; at this time it appears to be acceptable and we are waiting on a lease 
agreement.   


 
10. Flushing Program:   The flushing program is continuing; we are near completion.          


   
11. Gantt Chart:   December in the Gantt Chart shows that 2014 CIP construction should be 


complete – it’s not as discussed above, and shows review of the CIP which is on the 
agenda for this meeting.     







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 5 
December 5, 2013 
 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month Moving 
Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-
10


May-
10


Jul-
10


Sep-
10


Nov-
10


Jan-
11


Mar-
11


May-
11


Jul-
11


Sep-
11


Nov-
11


Jan-
12


Mar-
12


May-
12


Jul-
12


Sep-
12


Nov-
12


Jan-
13


Mar-
13


May-
13


Jul-
13


Sep-
13


S
a


le
s 


an
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-08 Jan-09 May-09 Sep-09 Jan-10 May-10 Sep-10 Jan-11 May-11 Sep-11 Jan-12 May-12 Sep-12 Jan-13 May-13 Sep-13


B
re


a
ks


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 5 
December 5, 2013 
 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


c
ip


it
at


io
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


2013


Dryest (1977)


2014


-







 
Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 FY 15+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2013-14 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


2014-15 Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2014 CIP Design


        2014 CIP Award of Contract


        2014 CIP Construction Starts


        2015 CIP Design


        2015 CIP Award of Contract


        2015 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Ends July-16
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Table 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: December 5, 2013 



